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Chairman’s Statement

Honorable Members of the General Assembly of ASSAS for Concrete Products

| am pleased to welcome all of you and the honorable delegate of the Comptroller General of Companies to this
14" annual meeting held pursuant to the provisions of Article (169) of the Companies Law No. (22) of 1997 and

its amendments.

On my own behalf and on behalf of the members of the Board of Directors, it gives me great pleasure to present to
you the details of this report, which reflects the financial results of the company during the past year according to

its performance, in addition to the development of the workflow of its projects for the year 2022.

Assas Company for Concrete Industries has suffered from the consequences of the Covid-19 crisis, as it witnessed
challenges represented in the decrease in demand for the construction sector, which created intense competition
and led to a reduction in the operational capacity of factories with low demand and offset by high costs. On its
market share in line with our ambitions, it achieved a net profit of 7.18% of net sales, thanks to God and His

success.

The company will continue to work to achieve its goals, raise production efficiency, and develop human
capabilities to meet the challenges of the stage by strengthening its current position in the market and developing

and increasing the quality of its products to keep pace with the company's future contributions.

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | would like to express my sincere thanks and great appreciation to all
employees of the ASSAS Company and its subsidiary company for their continuous efforts to enhance the
company’s position, and to the distinguished shareholders who have given us that precious trust and great
responsibility that we are proud of, and which motivates us to exert maximum efforts to achieve the company’s

goals, aspirations and strategies.

In conclusion, on my own behalf and on behalf of the members of the board of directors and employees of ASSAS
Company, | extend my highest gratitude and appreciation to His Majesty King Abdullah Il bin Al Hussein, may God
protect him, praying to the honorable Lord to pay his way for all that involves the elevation of the country, its

progress and its renaissance

Eng. Raja Khalil Ibrahim Alami
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Board recommendations
1. Read the minutes of the previous meeting

2. Reading the report of the Board of Directors for the fiscal year 2021 and discussing the future plan for2022.

3. Listen to thereport of thecompany’sauditors for its budget and other final accounts for the year

ended 31/12/ 2021

4. Discussion of the balance sheet and final accounts for the financial year ended31/12/2021.

5. Electivy of auditors for the fiscal year 2022 and determine their fees or authorize the Board of Directors to

determine their fees.
6. Discharging the members of the Board of Directors from liability within the limits permitted by law.

7. Any other matters that the General Assembly proposes to be included in the agenda according to the provisions

of Article (171) of the Companies Law.

Dear Shareholders,

The Board of Directors is pleased, after listening to the report to extend the sincere thanks to all shareholders and

clients for their continuous trust and support for the company.

The Council addresses all the company's employees, management, employees and workers, with thanks for their

sincere services and efforts to achieve the company's goals and objectives.

We wish them continued progress and prosperity

Board of Directors
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Report of the Board of Directors for the14 * general assembly

For the year2021

Honorable shareholders,

. . ol th . " ' . . . .
The Board of Directors is pleased to submit its 14" report indicating the financial statements in accordance with the

Companies Law.
1) a.The company's main activities

The company's activity is focused on manufacturing concrete based products of different types and sizes,
curbstone, interlocking tiles of different shapes and sizes, concrete stone and Hollow Core Slabs The
company uses modern machines in its various activities, and the company has become known in the
manufacture of precast concrete elements , .And also the company’s fleet is available to transport products
aswell as available forklifts working on production lines and in the handling the cargo business in

the company’s factories .
B .The geographical location of the company and the number of employees in it:
0  The geographical location of the company Amman branch:

The main headquarters of the company and the factory is located in Amman:

Al-Qastal - near Bonded Al -Qastal - Amman.
P .Box: (248) Giza 16010 Jordan
Phone: 4711609 - 4711610

Fax: 4711604
Website : www. assas.jo

O O O O o

0] The geographical location of the company, Aqaba branch:

Agaba Special Economic Zone, Al Maamel District

o Mobh: 079 — 1847 221
o Fax: 03-2012019
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® The number of employees has reached in31/12/2021( 132 )Employees classified into the

following:
Public Administration 4 4
Department of finance 6 7
Cpncrete Blocks 23 25
Hollow Core factory 32 30
Sales and Distribution Department 19 22
Maintenance Department 11 11
Agaba branch 15 15
Warehouses 3 3
Department of Administrative Affairs 11 11
Laboratory 4 4
Total 128 132

C .The size of the capital investment:

7,532,716 7,999,031 8,579,157 8983254 | 9,142,247

2) Subsidiaries of Assas Concrete Products:

Assas Modern Specialized Transport Company LLC is wholly owned by Assas for Concrete Products Company ,
with a capital Of 50,000 |Ds - Commercial Register (40573) on 20/05/2015 - its address: Al Qastal - and the

number of its employees 27 Employee.
3) Names of the members of the Board of Directors and a brief description of each of them:

The company’s board of directors consists of nine members, the majority of whom are representatives of

banks and companies in the Kingdom, and all of them have a first university degree as a minimum.
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1. Eng. Rajaa Khalil Ibrahim Alami

Chairman of Board of Directors

Membership date: 12/14/2011

Date of birth: 1952

Jordanian nationality

Academic Qualification: Bachelor of Civil Engineering
Graduation year: 1976

University Name : University of Birmingham - Britain

= About the CV:

YV V VY VY V

YV V VYV VY

Civil Aviation Authority 1976-1979.

Partner in an engineering consultancy office from 1979 to date.

General Manager of Ready Mix Concrete and Construction Supplies Company since its establishment in 1995 and to date.
Member of the Board of Directors of Ready Mix Concrete and Construction Supplies Company.

Member of the Board of Directors of the International Brokerage and Financial Markets Company since its establishment in

2005 and to date.
Member of the Board of Directors of Masafat Specialized Transport Company since its establishment in 2006 and to date.
Member of the Board of Directors of the International Cards Company 5/5/2007.
Member of the Board of Directors of the International Cards Company from 6/5/2007 to date.

Member of the Board of Directors of the Assas Modern Company for Specialized Transport.

2. Mr. Jawdat Khalil Ibrahim Alami

Deputy Chairman of the Board

Membership date: 12/14/2011

Date of birth: 1949

Jordanian nationality

Academic Qualification: Bachelor of Business Administration
Graduation Year: 1973

University Name: University of Idaho - USA

= About the CV:

>

He worked in exchange, investment and free trade since his graduation in 1973 and to date.
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> Member of the Board of Directors of Ready Mix Concrete and Construction Supplies Company since its establishment in

1995 and to date.
> Member of the Board of Directors of the International Cards Company 5/5/2007.
> Member of the Board of Directors of the International Cards Company from 6/5/2007 to date.
»  Member of the Board of Directors of Masafat Specialized Transport Company since its establishment in 2006 and to date.

Member of the Board of Directors of the Assas Modern Company for Specialized Transport.
3. Engineer Makram Khalil Ibrahim Alami

Member of the Board of Directors, representing the Rawcheh Company for Investment and Trade
= Membership date: 12/14/2011
] Date of birth: 1954
= Jordanian nationality
= Academic Qualification: Bachelor of Civil Engineering
) Graduation Year: 1978

= University Name: Purdue University - United States of America

= About the CV:
> Engineer at the Housing Corporation 1978-1979.
> Partner General Manager at an exchange company from 1979 to 2005.

Chairman of the Board of Directors of Ready Mix Concrete and Construction Supplies Company since its establishment in

1995 and to date.
> Chairman of the Board of Directors for the International Cards Company from 5/5/1999.
Chairman of the Board of Directors of Masafat Specialized Transport Company since its establishment in 2006 and to date.

Chairman of the Board of Directors / General Manager of the International Brokerage and Financial Markets Company

since 4/3/2005 to date.

4. Engineer Anas Mahmoud Ahmed Al-Shalabi

Member of the Board of Directors, representing the Masafat Specialized Transport Company
= Membership date: 12/14/2011
= Date of birth: 1952
. Nationality: Canadian
= Qualification : Master of Mechanical Engineering
= Graduation year: 1976

= University Name: University of London - Britain
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= About the CV:

He has worked in the field of petroleum investments in the United Arab Emirates since 1976 and to date.

> Member of the Board of Directors of Ready Mix Concrete and Construction Supplies Company since its establishment in

1995 and to date.
Member of the Board of Directors of the International Cards Company 1999-2007.
> Member of the Board of Directors of the International Cards Company from 6/5/2007 to date.

Member of the Board of Directors of Masafat Specialized Transport Company, since its establishment in 2006 and to date.

5. Mr. Mohamed Bahjat Amin Belbisi

Member of the Board of Directors, representing the National Portfolio Securities Company.
n Membership date: 12/14/2011
= Date of birth: 1954
. Jordanian nationality
= Academic Qualification: Bachelor of Business Administration

= Graduation year: 1976
= About the CV:

Y

Sales employee at the Jordan Tractors Company (Caterpillar) 1976-1977.

Member of the Board of Directors / General Manager of Forum Furniture 1977 - 1986.

Chairman of the Board of Directors / General Manager of the Arab Company for Financial Investments 1982 - 1986.
Chairman of the Board of Directors of the Real Estate Investment Portfolio Company, LLC.

Chairman of the Board of Directors of the National Insurance Company SAOG.

Chairman of the Board of Directors of the National Portfolio Securities Company.

Member of the Board of Directors of the Deposit Insurance Corporation.

Member of the Board of Directors of the Securities Depository Center.

YV VWV ¥V ¥V V VYV VYV VY

Chairman of the Board of Directors of the International Company for the manufacture of rock wool and insulation

materials.
>  Member of the Board of Directors of the Jordanian Businessmen Association.
> The Syndicate of Financial Services Companies.

> Member of the Board of Directors of the Amman Stock Exchange.
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6. Mr. Sohrab Rakkad Naji Owais

Member of the Board of Directors, representing The Jordanian Company for Crushers and Supply of

Construction Equipmentand Machinery.

Membership date: 26/7/2021

Date of birth: 1964

Jordanian nationality

Academic Qualification: Master of Finance
Graduation Year: 1996

University name: The University of Jordan

= About the CV:

>
>

YV V. V. VY V¥V

Executive Director of Excellence for Financial Investments from January 2007 until now.

Director of the Investment and Financial Brokerage Department at Bank of Jordan for the period from 7/1997 to

12/2006
Director General of the University Office for Computer Services for the period from 1996/10 to 1997/7.
Economic researcher at the Institute of Banking Studies for the period from 1996/3 to 10/1996.
Economic and statistical researcher at the Department of General Statistics for the period 3/1988 until 3/1996.
Financial advisor, financial broker, and investment trustee certified by the Securities Commission.

Member of the Board of Directors of Excel for Financial Investments for the period from 2010 / 2-1 and the period

01/2013.

Member of the Board of Directors of Ready Mix Concrete and Construction Supplies Company for the period from

7/2012.
Member of the Board of Directors of the Syndicate of Financial Services Companies from its inception until now.
Member of the Board of Directors of the Amman Stock Exchange for the period from 9/2002 - until 9/2005.

Member of the Board of Directors of the Association of Capital Market Certifiers for the period from 03/2002 to

10/2002.
Member of the Board of Directors of the Jordan Entrepreneurial Projects Company for the period from 2007-2012.
Member of the Board of Directors of the United Company for Glass Products for the period from 2003 to 2004.

Member of the Board of Directors of the Bahraini Jordanian Company for Technology and Communications 2001.

7. Mr. Khalil Makram Khalil Alami

Member of the Board of Directors, representing Suhail Jamil Al Muasher & Brothers Company

10
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Membership date: 12/14/2011

Date of birth: 1977

Jordanian nationality

Qualification: Master of Business Administration / American University - Beirut / 2006

BA in Economics / Purdue University - USA /1999

= About the CV:

>

General Manager, member of the Board of Directors of the International Cards Company.
Member of the Board of Directors of the International Brokerage and Financial Markets Company.
Member of the Board of Directors of Ready Mix Concrete and Construction Supplies Company.

Financial Broker License (Amman Financial Market - New Market Your K.

8. Engineer Alaa EI-Din Ali Abdel-Rahim Al-Masry

Member of the Board of Directors

Membership date: 12/14/2011

Date of birth: 1949

Jordanian nationality

Academic Qualification: Bachelor of Civil Engineering
Graduation year: 1974

University Name: State University of Technology / Turkey

= About the CV:

>

YV .V VYV ¥

Chief structural engineer, Deran and Masry Engineering Company.
Chief Engineer - Technical Director and CEO of a group of companies.
A member of a group of committees and bodies.

Member of the Board of Directors of Al-Quds Ready Mix Concrete.

Member of the Board of Directors of the Assas Modern Company for Specialized Transport.

9. Engineer Daoud Youssef Khalil Kosaya

Member of the Board of Directors, representing Ready Mix Concrete and Construction Supplies Company

Membership date: 12/14/2011
Date of birth: 1960
Jordanian nationality

Academic Qualification: Bachelor of Civil Engineering

11



adSSaSsS

= Graduation Year: 1985

» University Name: University of Texas

» About the CV:

> Director of the Department of Construction Materials (Arab Center for Engineering Studies.
Quality Control Manager for Jeddah Water Desalination Project, Taif, Kingdom of Saudi Arabia.
Director of Quality Control at Ready Mix Concrete and Construction Supplies Company.
Director of Operations and Assistant CEO of Ready Mix Concrete and Construction Supplies Company.
Member of the Board of Directors, Al-Quds Concrete Products Company.

Member of the Board of Directors of the International Cards Company.

V. V. V V. .V VY

Member of the Board of Directors of the International Brokerage and Financial Markets Company.

B . Names and ranks of senior management and an introduction to each of them:

1. Engineer Taher Nafeh Taher Abdel Aziz

General Director
= Appointment date : 9/22/2014
= Date of birth: 1959

= Academic Qualification: Bachelor of Civil Engineering - University of Tennessee, United States of America, 1984.

* About the CV:

Specialized in materials engineering and quality control.

Member of the Jordanian Engineers Association.

Quality Control Quality Assurance manager at CCC Oil and Gas Project - Sultanate of Oman 2013-2014.

Quality Control Engineer at Condoti Company, Kfranja Dam Project - Jordan 2011-2013.

Y. YV V.V

Project Engineer and Materials and Quality Control Engineer at CCC- TAV JV for the Muscat Airport Development Project,

Sohar Port development and a group of main roads - Sultanate of Oman 2009-2011.

»  Project Engineer and Materials and Quality Control Engineer at VINCI — CCC JV for Wadi Dayqah Construction Project-
Sultanate of Oman.2009-2006

> Materials and quality control engineer in the National Engineering and Contracting Company , the construction project

of Yarmouk University Road - University of Science - Jordan 2004-2006.
Materials and Quality Control Engineer at Condoti S.P.A, King Hussein Airport Project - Aqaba - Jordan, 2004-2003.

Materials and Quality Control Engineer at J.V. of Aegek — Hidrogradnja , Mujib Dam and Al-Wala Dam Project - Jordan
1999-2003.

12



adSSaSsS

> Materials and Quality Control Engineer at Condoti A.P.A, Ras Al-Naqab Road Project - Aqaba - Jordan 1999-1996.

> Materials and Quality Control Engineer at Joint Venture of Salini- Italsrade ,Dam project - Karama Dam - Jordan 1994-

1996.
» Inaddition to many experiences in other projects since 1984.
Course in Quality Control 9001 ISO.
Course in Public Safety and Radiation - for the Royal Scientific Society.
Course in Public Safety and Radiation - Arab Center for Engineering.
Course in Team Work — CCC - United Arab Emirates.

Course in Negotiations - CCC - United Arab Emirates.

V.V V VYV V VY

Course in Communication - CCC - United Arab Emirates.
> Course in Road Construction Development - United Contractors and Etarchemica - ETA

2. Mr. Hassan Adnan Hassan Allubani

Director of Financial Department

. Appointment date 2017/12/9

= Date of birth 1965/10/1 5

= Nationality : Jordanian

- Academic Qualification : Bachelor of Accounting - Computer Programming
= Graduation Year 1989:

. University Name : Yarmouk University - Irbid - Jordan

= About the CV:

> Director of financial and administrative - Arab Weavers Union Company 20122017 -

»  Financial Manager - International Company for Ceramic Products 2011-2012

> Financial Manager - Bin Jabr Group (UAE) Mediterranean Resources Company for Readymade Garments 20062010 -

> Financial Manager - Suhail Elias Najjar Investment Group (a regional company (Advanced Company for Saws and
Blades 20042006 -

»  Financial and Administrative Director - Modern Foundation for Paints Industry 19932004 -

> Checker (Part Time - (Naim Badran Audit Office 19921999 -

»  Accountant - Modern Foundation for the paintindustry 19911993 -

> Financial accountant - Jordan Armed Forces 1989 — 1991

3. Haitham Joma Muhammad Abu Anza

13



Shareholder Affairs Officer

Membership date: 3/4/2008

Date of birth: 1984

Academic Qualification: Bachelor of Business Administration
Graduation Year: 2006

University Name: Mutah University

= About the CV:

> Marketing employee at the Arab Insurance Company.

adSSaSsS

4) A statement of the names of the major owners of shares issued by the company at a rate of 5% or more:

Number of shares as Ratio as Number of shares as Ratio as
Name of the shareholder
in31/12/ 2021 in31/12/ 2021 in31/12/2020 in31/12/2020
Ready Mix Concrete and Construction
; 2,851,148 %40.05 2,841,184 %39.9
Supplies Company
Mr. Basem Ameen Abdullah Salem 580,083 %8.15 0 0
Hossam Ismail Mustafa Al-Barbawi 427,194 %6 427,194 %5.99
Mr. Yousef Ibrahim Mahmoud Salameh 390,000 %5.48 0 0

5) The company's competitive position within its sector of activity, its main markets, and its share of the

local market:

O A wholly owned subsidiary of Assas Concrete Products was established to expand and develop the transportation fleet in

order to attract new job opportunities in the transportation field.

O Production machines have also been developed to increase operational efficiency and productivity and reduce costs, which

will reflect positively in the subsequent periods.

O Theinvestment was also made in expanding the storage yards of the factory of Hollow Core Slabs and precat concrete blocks

and the Aqaba plant to raise readiness and meet the needs of the market in the coming years.

6) Reliance on specific suppliers and / or major customers (locally or abroad) in the event that this

constitutes (10%) or more of the total purchases and / or sales or revenues respectively:

®  Suppliers (Qatraneh Cement Company) an amount of 915,215 |Ds, which constitutes 21 % of the purchases

®  There are no engagements or contracts between the company and the chairman and members of the board of directors, the

general manager, or any employee

7) There is no government protection or privileges enjoyed by the company or any of its products under

the laws and regulations or others, and there are no patents ora Franchise rights Obtained by the

company.

14
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8) There are no decisions issued by the government, international organizations, or others that have a

material impact on the company ,its products, or its competitiveness.

The company also does notimplement international quality standards.

9) A. company organizational structure :

Scard ol Diwctors
iereal Asdi Comltise | Adniivtatan of hiemal Audt
Ganaral Man gor
I 1 Aasa Modern Compary far Spactaimed Trnapsn
Sajeyy Ofcnr Dapaty Genscal Maneger ;
G |
Bk & Imeriockisg Ties EImasen S Sales Naragsr Narrienance Warsger om"m‘:':'::;e
Facioty Nanager ! l I
| | s Y TR, PSR NN O P B
Batch Raw IO ok - . Logwie Elec victy wmﬂ Ko Labioralory
Flant Wateras Prodecton T A Boods St plores Mo U
Hisdng  OE¥oulor
sra )
wNdag Cvesry
Adminieralion Nanage Precadt & BES Factary Nuzaper A@mnalurmwm'nu
I ' V] L 3 | ] AT -
IT  Secrvony Tomaposlon  hertn  PoGeene Design  Bapn  Producion Marfenarce Syes  ASWSSWINO Sopee  Prducion O
Repcusce Ofce  Play A 590Y Nanager Afacs
B - Organizational Structure of the Subsidiary Company:
——
Board of Directors
—
——— A
GM
N\, I
Deputy GM
) - 4
Sales Maintenance
N\, I
Distribution Tt
) - g

15

Mechanics of Cars & machinery

——



C .Number of employees and categories of their qualifications:

Qualifications Main company

Affiliate company

M.A. 1 0 1
Bachelor 19 3 22
diploma 16 4 20

Guideline and below 66 23 89

Total 101 30 132

D . Training programs:

The course

10) There are no risks that the company may be exposed to during the subsequent fiscal year that has a

material impact on it:
11) The mostimportant achievements of the company:
v The company was provided with qualified technical and administrative cadres.

12) Financial impact of operations of a non-recurring nature that occurred during the financial year and do

not fall within the main activity of the company:
There is no.

13) The time series of realized profits or losses, dividends, net shareholders' equity and prices of securities

issued by the company.

Statement 2018

Net realized profits (losses) 352,981 (455,283) (1,419,039) (600,923) (596,753)
Distributed dividends | . P L b e e

Net shareholder equity 6,901,675 6,509,583 6,955,918 8,442,375 9,283,971
The closing price of the stock, in |Ds 0.550 013 0.150 0.160 0.210

*The company was established on 5/6/2007 and was listed in the Amman Financial Market on 1/11/2007, and the

right to commence work on 9/24/2007.
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14) Analysis of the company's financial position and results of its business during the financial period:

There is no.

a .Company revenue:

Company revenue 6,081,677 ]D forayear 2021 It was distributed as follows:

Statement 2020 : :
Sales revenue 5,881,207 4,980,068 6,168,648 7,247,925
Interest income from the bank - 0 0 0
Income from equity investments - 0 0 26,074
Other income 200,470 51,560 175,765 49,744

B . Budget, profit and loss:

1. The company has achieved on 31/12/2021 losses before investing 352,981 |D of the total revenue
6,081,677 D.

2. Total sales profit 752,734 |D of total sales revenue 5,881,207 |D.
3. Total sales costs, administrative expenses, selling, distribution and other costs (4,720,714) |D.

4. Netbusiness results amounted to profit of (392,092) |D.

C .Dividend distribution:

Statement
Mandatory reserve 170,287 136,859
Optional reserves 75,201 75,201

Remuneration of board members

Scientific research fees

University fees

Provision for the TVET Fund

D . Comparative financial ratios:

Statement _
Earning per share 0.050 JD/share (0.035)
Return on investment %3.253 (%8.31)
Return on equity %5.114 (%6.86)
Return on sales %6 (%9.36)
Net profit before tax to sales %6.5 (%8.3)
ownership percentage %64 %148
trade rate %133 %35.3
Working capital 2,324,401 3121912
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E. Comparative financial indicators and data:

Statement

adSSaSsS

The authorized capital 7,120,000 7,120,000

Subscribed capital 7,120,000 7,120,000

Total assets 10,822,207 11,330,141

Net equity 6,901,675 6,509,583

Total revenue 6,081,677 5,031,628

Clear Income profit (loss) before tax 383,968 (413,192)
The closing price of the stock 0.550 0.130

15) a.The company's future plan:

1.

5.
6.

B . Significant future developments and expectations of the Board of Directors:

Modernizing the company's transportation fleet to cope with the increase in sales volume.

Work to reduce production costs, transportation, general expenses and energy.

Working to increase and diversify the company's products by producing distinctive cement varieties that

are unique to the company at the local market level.

Working on a more comprehensive definition of the company in the engineering and construction sectors.

Work on positive competition with the local market in terms of sales and specialized products.

Working to make the most of the available production capacity by operating a factory in Irbid.

The company intends to expand its activities during the year 2022 In accordance with Clause (15-a) above.

16) a.Audit fee:

O The auditing company’s financial statements Messrs.Talal Abu- Ghazaleh International & Co. where

he reached the annual fees for the period ending in 31/12/ 2021 and an amount of 7,500 |Ds.

O The company also contracted with Professor Qassem Al-Dammour to audit the income tax of the subsidiary.

B

. Consulting:

O The company contracted with Dr. Qassem Al-Damour to audit and review the company's applications with

regard to sales tax.

O The company also contracted with Mr. Shehda Mansour as a consultant for income tax to end the tax
situation for the years until the end of 2021.

O The company contracted a company e-construct Emirates to provide engineering consultancy.
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O The company contracted with the office of Eng. Mohamed Habib to provide engineering consultancy.

O The company contracted with an office Infrast to provide engineering consultancy.

17) a. Astatement of the number of securities issued by the previously owned companyBoard Members:

Names of the members of the Board of The number of

Number of shares

Directors iti i i i i The ratio
asin31/12/ 2020

Ready Mix Concrete and Construction Supplies
2,851,184 %40.05 2,841,184 39.9%
Company, represented by / Eng .Raja Khalil
22,770 %0.32 770 0.01%
Ibrahim Alami President Jordanian
1,483 %0.02 1,483 0.02%
Mr .Daoud Youssef Khalil Kosaya member Jordanian
vice
Mr. Jawdat Khalil Ibrahim Alami Jordanian 10,029 %0.14 15,129 0.212%
president
The Jordanian Company for Crushers and ‘ 89,300 %1.25 148333 2.08%
Supply of Construction Equipmentand member Jordanian
Machinery. b e
represented by / Mr. Sohrab Rakkad Naji Owais
National Portfolio Securities Company,
10,000 %0.14 52,213 0.733%
represented by/ member Jordanian
N Vi Befiat A Bl 1+ e e e
Suhail Jameel Muasher & Brothers Company,
10,000 %0.14 5,933 0.0833%
represented by/ member Jordanian
Mr. Khalil Makram Khalil Alami b T T e T
Raoucheh Investment and Trade Company,
10,164 %0.14 593 0.008%
represented by/ member Jordanian
Mr. Makram Khalil Ibrahim Alami b b T T e T T
Masafat Specialized Transport Company,
148,333 %2.08 148,333 2.08%
represented by/ member Canadian
Mr. Anas Mahmoud Ahmed Al-Shalabi ¢ @ i T o mmr e
Mr. Alaa El Din Ali Abdel Rahim Al Masry member Jordanian 10,086 %0.14 10,086 0,141%

B . Number of securities owned by top management:

Number of shares as

The position Nationality
f in31/12/ 2021
M Taher Nafeh Abdel Aziz General Manager Jordanian -
Hassan Adnan Hassan Allubani Chief Financial Officer Jordanian —_—
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C . Number of securities owned by relatives of board members and senior management :
Relatives of board members and senior management who own shares in the company.
O Jiyan Jawdat Khalil Alami (15,129) Share
O Jawdat Alami & Brothers Company (5,933) share
O There are no companies controlled by board members and their relatives

O There are no companies controlled by senior management personnel or their relatives.

18) a.Benefits and rewards for members of the Board of Directors:

Transportation
The name iti i Bonuses | Allowances

allowance 5
A Mr Raja Khalil Ibrahim Alami Chairman 3600 ;i il g
2 Mr. Jawdat Khalil Ibrahim Alami vice Chairman 3600 i eeeem b
3 M.r Makram Khalil Ibrahim Alami member 3600k
4 i Mr.Anas Mahmoud Ahmed Al-Shalabi member 36000 i A
5 Mr. Sohrab Rakad Naji Owais member 2,700 b e E e
6 | Mr.Mohammed Bahjat Amin Belbisi member 3600k
7 Mr. Khalil Makram Khalil Alami member 3600 T T I e e T D e
.8 Mr. Aladdin Ali Al-Masry member 3600 i e b e
9 Mr. Daoud Youssef Khalil Kosaya member 3600 1 e iy

*A car was allocated to the Chairman of the Board of Directors

B . Benefits and rewards obtained by senior management employees:

Occupation . Salaries Bonuses
1. i M Taher Nafie Taher Abdel Aziz General Manager JD 67,455 4,000 71,455
2. Hassan Alloubani Chief Financial Officer { D 35,700 2,150 37,850
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* Due to the nature of the company's business and its location, a car and / or a truck has been allocated to each of

the above managers

19) Donations and grants paid by the company during the past year:

The name of the donor the amount

Scholarships for children of employees 3,300

Other donations 4,716

20) A statement of the contracts, projects and engagements that the company entered into with subsidiary,
sister or allied companies, the chairman of the board of directors, a member of the board of directors,

the general manager, or any employee of the company or their relatives.

Related parties include associates, major shareholders, and members of the board of directors, senior executive management of
the company, and companies that are directly or indirectly controlling or have a material influence by these parties. The
following are the details of dealing with related parties .Ready mix concrete and construction supplies) sister company (during

the year 2021 Thus:
= The rental expenses of the ready mix factory land in an amount of (48,000) JD.
. Income from the lease of part of the factory land an amount (amount(15,000)One JD for twelve months.(
. Sales of (143,450) |Ds and purchases of (1,326,960) Ds.
21) a.The company's contribution to protecting the environment:

O  The company recycles production waste by reusing it after grinding it again.

O  The introduction of Holow Core Slabs manufacturing is an important step towards reducing pollution within the city, as
the supply of finished materials directly to the place of installation reduces the environmental damage resulting from

traditional casting on site.
O  Continuous disposal of factory waste in a timely manner.

O  Use of alternative energy.
B . The company's contribution to serving the local community:

0 The company tries continuously to employ the national manpower, if available, and trains them on

the required tasks with the best possible efficiency.

C .The company's contribution to scientific development:
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0 The company contributed to enriching scientific research by participating in scientific research work for
professors of Al-Zaytoonah University of Jordan and Al Al-Bayt University in the following areas:
® Effect of saline water on mechanical properties of conventional reinforced concrete.
® Effect of salt water on reinforced concrete using geogrid on the outer surface of the concrete
elements or internally with steel reinforcement.
® Preliminary research into the development of water permeable concrete.
0 The company also participated in competitions among civil engineering students at the University of Jordan
on how to use raw materials, cement, fly ash and micro silica to make high quality concrete mixtures.
0 The company also contributed to providing the ACI CHAPTER OF JORDAN UNIVERSITY office with various
cement materials to conduct university laboratory experiments in the field of concrete mixtures.
0 The company also contributed to enriching scientific research by participating in scientific research for
master’s degree students at the University of Jordan and Al-Zaytoonah University of Jordan through:
® Experimental study and modeling of reinforcement of chloride-damaged concrete bridges using
glass fiberglass fabric.
® Scientific research in the field of precast concrete (Hollow Core) using Carbon Fiber and its effect
on fire resistance.

22) Corporate Governance Report for Assas Concrete Products:

Information and details related to the implementation of the provisions of these instructions and the corporate

governance rules in the company:

0 The company is ajoint stock company based on the company based on B contained in the provisions of
the amended Companies Law 34 for the year 2017 and the instructions of the Securities Commission in

2017 items And the statute, rules and internal policies in developing its internal movement.

0 The corporate governance is adhered to, as the company has an internal governance system approved by

the Board of Directors and in accordance with the corporate governance rules.
0 Assas is managed by a board of directors consisting of nine members for a period of four years.
0 All members of the Board of Directors are non-executive members.
0 More than a third of the board members are independent.
0 The Board of Directors will be elected according to the cumulative voting method.
0 All members of the Council are qualified persons who have sufficient experience and knowledge in

financial and legislative matters.
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Assas strives through corporate governance to achieve the following objectives:
0 Documentation of corporate governance policies and procedures.

0 Used as ameans to define and clarify the responsibilities delegated to all staff responsible for
the preparation of documents and Walt ' reports that are submitted to the Board of not circuit and pop - up

committees with him and General Manager.
0 Itisused asaway to comply with local laws and company statutes.

0 Identify and Toda h relations between management and the Board of not management and shareholders

and its committees and third parties.
0 The system isimplemented in accordance with the relevant laws, instructions and regulations.

0 Achieve transparency adequate and justice and togrant theright to Massalhave the management

company to the concerned authorities.

0 Achieving the necessary protection for public ownership, taking into account the interests of those dealing

with the various state institutions and limiting the abuse of power.

0 Opportunities to achieve a review of performance from outside members of not executive management
and shall have the powers and functions of the terms of reference for achieving effective and independent

oversight.

0 Increase confidence in the management of not economy of the national will contribute to raising the rates

of notinvesting and growth of national income.

The following is a review of the most important points and concepts of governance for Assas that it seeks to

achieve:

1. Discipline : It is represented in controlling the ethical and professional behavior of the practices of
individuals at any level of management in the company, whether in the board of directors or the non-

executive management.

2. Transparency and disclosure: that is, clearly announcing information and reports related to the activities of
companies without obliterating them in order to prevent instances of manipulation and fraud in order to

serve the personal interests of some of the company's stakeholders.

3. Independance : prevent any emotional effects or pressure may lead to a weakening of therole of

the officials at any level of management in the company.
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4. Responsibility: Enhancing the spirit of responsibility among employees in order to achieve the principle of
accountability and accountability for deficiencies in the duties and responsibilities assigned to any official

and at any level of management.

5. Accountability: and is the right of shareholders to Almsallof h and the prosecution Qogahm and their
interests are and include Massa Il of the Executive Directors Veh in front of the Board of Directors and

Massa Il of the Council before the shareholders ' body.

6. Justice and Equality :Achieving the principle of justice for all stakeholders, in a way that achieves respect for
the rights of the other and equality between large and small investors without detracting from the rights of

the other.

7. Social responsibility :that is, looking at the company as a national and community-based company that
works to achieve the national interests of the nation and the interests of society. This concept also implies

the necessity of equitable use of natural resources for all stakeholders, even if they are limited.

Member yeh board members in other global joint stock companies:

e Eng. Raja Khalil Alami:

V' Masafat L Transport Specialist Company Vice Chairman

v Ready Mix Concrete and Construction Supplies Company Member of the Board of Directors

V' International Brokerage and Financial Markets Company Member of the Board of Directors
v’ Global Cards Company Member of the Board of Directors

e Eng Makram Khalil Alami:

V' Masafat Company for the transfer of specialist Chairman of the Board of director
v Global Brokerage and Financial Markets Company Chairman of the Board of Directors
v'International Cards Company Chairman of the Board of Director
v Ready Mix Concrete and Construction Supplies Company Chairman of the Board of Directors

e Mr. Jawdat Khalil Alami:

v Ready Mix Concrete and Construction Supplies Compan Vice Chairman

V' International Brokerage and Financial Markets Company, Member of the Board of Directors
v'International Cards Company Member of the Board of Directors
v Masafat Specialized Transport Company Member of the Board of Directors
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VoAl Quds Ready mix Company
Eng. Anas Mahmoud Al-Shalabi:
v" lnternational Brokerage and Financial Markets Company,
v Ready Mix Concrete and Construction Supplies Compan
V' International Cards Company,
v’ Masafat Specialized Transport Company
Mr. Sohrab Rakkad Naji Owais:
V' The Jordanian Company for Crushers and
Supply of Construction Equipment and Machinery
Mr. Mohamed Bahjat Amin Belbisi:
v' National Portfolio Securities Company
v/ National Portfolio Real Estate and Investment Company
v' The National Insurance Company
v' Amman Stock Exchangeisa
Mr. Khalil Makram Alami:
v’ International Cards Company
v Ready Mix Concrete and Construction Supplies Company
Engineer Alaa EI-Din Ali Abdel-Rahim:
v AlQuds Readymix Concrete
Eng. Daoud Youssef Khalil Kosaya:
v oAl Quds Ready mix Company
v’ Global Brokerage Company and the Financial Markets

v International Cards Company
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Member of the Board of Directors

Member of the Board of Directors
Member of the Board of Directors

Member of the Board of Directors

Member of the Board of Directors

Member of the Board of Directors

Chairman of the Board of Directors
Member of the Board of Directors

Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors

Member of the Board of Directors

Member of the Board of Directors

Member of the Board of Directors
Member of the Board of Directors

Member of the Board of Directors
Member of the Board of Directors

Member of the Board of Directors
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Names of the Board of Directors for the year2021:

Independent or not Executive or non-
Members
independent executive
1. Engineer Rajaa Khalil Alami Is notindependent Non-executive
2. Engineer Makram Khalil Alami Is notindependent Non-executive
3. Mr. Jawdat Khalil Alami Is notindependent Non-executive
4. Engineer Anas Mahmoud Al-Shalabi independent Non-executive
5. Mr. Sohrab Rakad Naji Owais independent Non-executive
6. Mr. Mohamed Bahjat Amin Belbisi independent Non-executive
7. Mr. Khalil Makram Alami Is notindependent Non-executive
8. Engineer Alaa El-Din Ali Abdel-Rahim Al-Masry independent Non-executive
9. Engineer Daoud Youssef Khalil Kosaya Is notindependent Non-executive

Committees emanating from the Board of Directors:

1. The Audit Committee

1. The President: Mr. Sohrab Aweys
2. Member: Mr. Aladdin Al-Masry
3. Member: Mr. Dahoud Kosaya

2.  Governance Committee

1. The President: Mr. Sohrab Aweys
2. Member: Mr. Aladdin Al-Masry
3. Member: Mr. Dahoud Kosaya

3. Remuneration and Nomination Committee

1. The President :Mr. Sohrab Aweys
2. Member :Mr. Aladdin Al-Masry
3. Member: Mr. Dahoud Kosaya
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4. Risk Committee

1. The President: Mr .Aladdin Ali Al-Masry
2. Member: Mr .Taher Abdel Aziz

3. Member: Mr. Dahoud Kosaya

4. Member: Mr. Yazan Muslm

Executive Positions and Names of Their Incumbents:
0 The General Manager Eng. Taher Abdel Aziz

0 Financial Director Mr. Hassan Adnan Allubani

Number of Board Committee Meetings for the year 2021:

Number of Audit Committee meetings with the External Auditor:

The Audit Committee Number of meetings Number Attendees
Mr. Sohrab Rakad Naji Owais 4 3
Engineer Alaa El-Din Ali Abdel-Rahim Al-Masry 4 4
Engineer Daoud Youssef Khalil Kosaya 4 4

Risk Committee Number Attendees
Engineer Alaa El-Din Ali Abdel-Rahim Al-Masry 2 2
Engineer Taher Abdel Aziz 2 2
Engineer Daoud Youssef Khalil Kosaya 2 2
Mr. Yazan Muslim 2 2
Governance Committee Number of meetings l Number of attendees
Mr. Sohrab Rakad Naji Owais 2 1
Engineer Alaa El-Din Ali Abdel-Rahim Al-Masry 2 2
Engineer Daoud Youssef Khalil Kosaya 2 2
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Nomination and Remuneration Committee Number of meetings

Mr. Sohrab Rakad Naji Owais 2 2
Engineer Alaa EI-Din Ali Abdel-Rahim Al-Masry 2 2
Engineer Daoud Youssef Khalil Kosaya 2 2

Number of Board Members Meetings for the year 2021:

No. Members l Number of meetings Number of attendees
1. Engineer Rajaa Khalil Alami 6 6

2. Engineer Makram Khalil Alami 6 6

3. Mr. Jawdat Khalil Alami 6 6

4, Engineer Anas Mahmoud Al-Shalabi 6 6

5. Mr. Sohrab Rakad Naji Owais 6 5

6. Mr. Mohamed Bahjat Amin Belbisi 6 6

7. Mr. Khalil Makram Alami 6 5

8. Engineer Alaa EI-Din Ali Abdel-Rahim Al-Masry 6 6

9. Engineer Daoud Youssef Khalil Kosaya 6 6

- Mr. Hassan Al-Lubani a liaison officer has been appointed to follow up matters related to the

implementation of corporate governance at the Securities Commission.

Acknowledgment by the Board of Directors:

1. The Board of Directors declares that there are no material matters that may affect the continuity of the

company during the fiscal year 2021
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2. The Board of Directors acknowledges its responsibility for preparing the financial statements for the
year 2021 and about the availability of an effective control system in the company.
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ATV g T SR ST

Talal Abu-Ghazaleh & Co. International TAG-Audit
Global Company for Auditing and Accounting e A daay 3 Ao dg 5
105180950
Independent Auditors Report
To Messrs. Shareholders
Aszsas for Concrete Products

Public Sharcholding Company
Amman - The Hashemite Kingdom of Jordan

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statemants of Assas for Concrete Products (Public Shareholding
LCompany), which comprise the statement of consolidated financial position as at December 31, 2021, and
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, conselidated statement of changes in equity and
consolidated statement of cash Aows for the year then ended, and notes to the Anancial statements,
mncluding a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects,
the consolidated financtal position of the Company as at December 31, 2021, and of its consolidated
firancial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordanmce with
International Financial Reporting Standards.

Bagis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing Our responsibilitiss

undes those standards are further described in the section of our report Auditors’ responsibilities for the
andit of the financial statements

We are ent of the Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for
Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code) topgether with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements, and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requiremerits,

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion,
Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and i forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters,

Expected credit losses Scope of audit

The company has applied IFRS (%) expected credit We conducted comprehensive assessment to
lesses requirements which resulted in a change in the identify the key controls used to determine
calculation of impairment from the incurred loss expected credit losses, data collection and
modal to the expected credit foss model, and the completeness, and related esHmates and

? for expected credit losses amounting to T assumptions used by management, and we

£98,131 as at December 31, 2021. have tested key control systems on the
modeling process.
TAGUCI Building e or e A gl i i i
104 Mecea Street, Um-Uthaina, Amman, Jordan B Forum or Firvis S i Al pf A p Y - 4

Tel: +962 & 5100 200 z +457 1 8V 4. s
Fax: +962 6 5100 601 tagi.com IR LR EIPRE P
P.O.Box: 921100 Amman 11192, Jordan tagco.amman(@tagi.com SR TR e AT Y e rg e
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Talal Abu-Ghazaleh & Co, International

Inventory impairment Scope of sudit

Based on IFRS requirements, inventary is measured We analyzed the inventory items ages and
when preparing the financial statements at the lower discussed management assumptions regarding
of cost and net realizable value, and when it is not the expected volume of use and based on our
possible o recover the cost of the inventory if it knowledge and experience of the sector in
becomes totally or partially damaged or obsolete or  which the entity operates.
sales prices decreased. when the net realizable value  We tested the appropriateness of inventory
falls below cost the difference is recognize as expense impairment provision by assessing  the
for price decrease in the profit or loss, management assumplions, laking into account
external information available and subsequent
events after the end of the fiscal year,
We assessed whether the provision that is we
recorded against, obsolete and slow moving
inventory to comply with the accounting
policies, taking into account the rationale of
the provision determination policy using
historical data, we also examined sales
irweices is  subsequent period ko assess
whether the inventory was sold at a value
higher than cost by comparing the selling price
with inventory wvalues recorded in  the
Ccompany’s accounts,
We have taken inte account the
appropriateness of the entity’s explanations
about the degree of estmates related to
arriving at the value of impairment provision
in general. we have concluded that the basic
assumption used and the resultant estimate
and evaluation are appropriate assumptions

kher [Information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the [information
mncluded in the annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditors” report thereon

Our epinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other infermation and, in deing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material

misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to repert in
this regard.
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or the Consolid ated

Management i responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consclidated financial
statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, and for such intermal control as

management determings is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continee as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management sither intends to liquidate the
Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s consolidated financial
reporing process,

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the consolidated Financial Statements

Or objectives are to oblain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantse that an
audit conducted in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (I5As) will always datect a
material misstatement when il exists, Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considersd
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with International Standard on Auditing. we exercise professional
judgment ard maintain professional skepticiem throughout the audit We also:

» Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatemnent resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may

involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
contral

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company’'s internal contral,

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

= Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
besed on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequabe, to modify our epinion. Our conclusions are based on the and it evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to
continue as a going concern.

* Evaluate the overall presenlation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
trangactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

= Obtain sufficlent appropriate andit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the group to express an opinion on the group financial statement we are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. we remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.
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We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, the planned scope and Hming of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit

Wi also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and communicate with them all relationships and other

matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safegmards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the
key audil matbers. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Reguirements

The Company has proper accounting records which are, in all material respects, consistent with the
accompanying consolidated financial statements, accordingly, we recommend to approve these financial
statemants by the general assembly.

Talal Abu-Ghazaleh # Co, International

b
W Amman, March 5, 2022



Assas for Concrete Products
Fublic Sharehalding Company
Amman - The Hashemite Kingdom of Jordan

Consolidated statement of financial position as at December 31, 2021

Notes 20 2020
ASSETS D o
Mon-current Assets
Property, plant and equipment 3 7532716 7,999,131
[vestment in associates 4 1,671,204 157719
Iwestment m financial asset at fair value through other
comprebensive income 5 71,956 53270
Total Noa-current Assets 9,226,076 9,631,095
Curment Assets
Inventory B h15.527 736,528
Due from relabed parties 7 . 30
(ither debil balances 8 174,514 159,168
Trade receivables § 359440 b7 A%
Cashand cash equivalents 10 46,35 22531
Total Current Assets 1,596,131 1,698,646
TOTAL ASSETS 10,822 207 11,230,141

The attached notes constitute an Integral part of these consolidated Financial statements

1



Assas for Concrete Products
Public Sharcholding Company
Amman = The Hashemite Kingdom of Jordan

Consolidated statement of financial position as at December 31, 2001

Noes 0 20

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES D D

Equity

Declared and paid-in capital 1&13 7,120,000 7,120,000

Statatory reserve 1 170,287 13550

Voluntary reserve 12 73,201 75,201

Change in fair value of investments in financial assets at fair value

lrougi afer comprehersive ncome 5 (27 ) (288346

Change i fair value of irvestments in financial assets at fair value

thremgh ather comprehersive inoome - associates (33,211 (55,636

Apccumulated losses 13 (158.742) (478,293

Net Equity 6,901,675 6,500,583

Liabilities

Nom Current Liabilities

Loars - non-carrant porticn L 13380 50,706
- Current Liabilities

Dther credit balances 1 373,581 415,5!-1

Income b provision 16 220 40,087

Due to related parbes T 2178530 3004487

Tradz payables 17 1163511 871230

Lians - current portion 14 160,320 M

Bank overdraft - 117,878

Tatal Current Lizbilities 3,907,152 4,729,792

Total Liabilities 3,900,532 4,87 558

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 10,822,207 11,330,141

Accompanying notes constitute an integral part of these consolidated financial statements

Fi
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Assas for Concrete Products
Public Shareholding Company
Amman - The Hashemite Kingdom of Jordan

Consolidated statement of cash Flows for the year ended December 31, 2021

a0 2020
CASH FLOWS FROM OFERATING ACTIVITIES D L&)
Profit {loss) before tax and national contributicn 3068 (413,162
Adjustements far ;
Depreciation 518,977 §19,068
Gains on sale of property, plant and equipment (10,347
Transfer from property and equipment to exponses Ja, 51 1758
Eecovery of allowance 177 678}
Slow moving imventory a5
Share of result of associates (21,783} 73308
Change in operating assets and [fabillties:
Imrentory (79,050 0,762
Due from related parties 520 1.206
DOither debit balances B4E54 FEQYTR
Trade recalvables 27755 20
Deferred checks - related parthes (1,526,747
Other credit balances (52.027) 1,435
Diue i related parties (825,957 1.356,043
Trade payabies 292,281 {138,544)

1789705 1061108

Inctere tax paid (40,087
et cash from operating activities 436,888 1.061,108
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of prepesty, plant and equipment (109.546) (53,430
Procesds from sale of property, plant and equipmeni - 17.282
Met cash from investing activities (103,6446) 136, 148}
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Loans (187,345) (26,990
Banks overdraft (L17.B78) (800.063)
Mgt cash from financing activities (305,223 (1027, 053)
Net change in cash and cash equvilents 4.m9 (2,003
Cash and rash equivalents - beginning of year 22.531 24,624
Cash and cash equivalents - end of year 6,550 11531
Mon cash transactions
Chuench accwmalted koses in compay’s capital - 4,550,000

Accompanying nobes constitute an integral part of these consolidated financial statements

5



Aszas for Conerete Products
Public Shareholding Company
Amman - The Hashemite Kingdom of Jordan

Motea to the consolidated financial statemient

1. Legal status and activity for parent company and subsidiaries as follows:

— The parent company {Assas for Concrete Industries and incorporated and registered at the Ministry
of Industry and Trade as public shareholding under No (438) on June 5, 2007. The main activities of
the company are production, lmport and export all kinds of kerbstone, bricks, hourdi block, ties and
mberlock, forming metal and to do all other acts related thereto.

— The subsidiary company |Assas for Modern Specialized Transportation incorporated and registered
as a limited liability company at the Ministry of Industry and trade under no (40573} on May 20,
2015 The main activities of the company are ramsport materials, sand, pravels, infrastructure
materials, road specialized transport related to material construction, ready concrete and general
goods.

— The financial statement have been approved by board of direction on March 5, 2022 and it requires
approval of the General Assembly.
1. Basis for preparation of financial statements and significant accountant policies
2-1 Basis for financial statement preparation

- Financial statements preparation framework

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards issued by International Accounting Standard Board,

- Measurement bages used in preparing the financial statements

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for measurement
of certain items at bases other than historical cost,

— Functional and presentation CUITEnCY

The financial statements have been presented in Jordanian Dinar (JD) which is the functional
currency of the enbity,

2-1 Using of estimates

- When preparing of financial statements, management uses judgments, assessments and
assumptions that affect applying the accounting policies and currying amounts of assets,
liabilities, revenue and expenses. Actual result may differ from these estimates,

= Change in estimates are reviewed on a constant basis and shall be recognized in the period of the
change, and future periods if the change affects them.

= For example, estimates may be required for expected credit loss, inventory obsolescence, useful
lives of depreciable assets, provisions, and any legal cases against the entity,



Aszas for Concrete Produocts

Fublic Shareholding Company
Ammnan -The Hashemite Kingdom of Jordan

Motes ta the consolidated financal statements for the year ended December 31, 2021

2-3 Standards and Interpretations issued that became effective

Standard number or
interpretation

Description

Effective date

Amendments to
IFRS 16 Cowid-19-
related Eent
Concesgions,

As a result of the COVID-19 pandemic, rent
concessions have been granted to lessess. Such
concessions might take a variety of forms, including
payment holidays and deferral of lease payments.

In May 2020, the 1ASH made an amendment to [FRS
16 Leases which provides lessees with an option o
Etreat qualifying rent concessions in the same way as
they would if they were not lease modifications. In
many cases, this will result in accounting for the
concessions as variable lease payments in the period
in which they are granbed.

Main Changes :

— Permit a lessee to apply the practical expedient
regarding COVID-1%-related rent concessions to
rent concessions for which any reduction in lease
payments affects only payments originally due on
or before 30 Tune 2022 {rather than only payments
originally due on or before 30 June 2021);

- Require a lessee applying the amendment to do $o
retrospectively, recognising the cumulative effect
of initially applying the amendment as an
adpstment to the opening balance of refained
earnings (or other component of equity, as
appropriate] at the beginning of the anmuwal
reporting period in which the lessee first applies
the amend ment

June 1, 2020 /
April 1, 2021

[ntarast Rate
Benchmark Reform
Phase 2

Amendments to [FRS
4, IFRS 7, [FRS 9, IFRS
16 and [AS 39,

In Avgust 2020, the [ASE made amendments to IFRS
9, IAS 39, IFRS 7 IFRS 4 and [FRS 16 to address the
issues that arise during the reform’' of an interest rate
benchmark rate, including the replacement of one
benchmark with an alternative one,

The Phase 2 amendments provide the following

reliefs;

— When changing the basis for determining
contractual cash flows for financlal assets and
liabilities (including lease lLabilities), the reliefs
have the effect that the changes, that are necessary
as a direct consequence of [BOR reform and
which are considered economically equivalent,
will not result in an immediate gain or loss in the
income statement.

= The hedge accounting reliefs will allow most LAS
39 or TFR5 9 hedge relationships that are directly
affected by TBOR reform to continue. However,
additional ineffectiveness might need W be
recorded,

January 1, 2021




Assas for Concrele Products
Public Shareholding Company
Amman -The Hashemite Kingdom of Jordan

Motes to the consolidabed financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2021

Standard tions isswed but nok effeckive
Standard number or Deescription Effective date
interpretation
Amendments to Extension of an optional exemption permiting a | January 1, 2022
IFRS 1 Subsidiary First- | subsidiary that becomes a first-ime adopter after its
Hme Adoption of parent to measure cumulative translation differences
International Financial | using the amounits reported by ils parent, based on the
Reporting Standards. parent’s date of transition to [FRSs. A similar election
is available to an associate or joint venture,
IFRS(17) IFRS (17) was lssued in May 2017 as replacement for | Jamuaary 1, 2023
Insurance Contracts. [FES {4) Insurance Contracts. {deferred from
It requires a current measurement model where Jarmacy 1, 2001).
estimates are remeasured in each reporting period.
Contracts are measured using the building blocks of:
* discounted probability-weighted cash flows
* an explicit risk adjustment, and
* a contractual service margin (CSM) representing
the unearned profit of the contract which ks
recognised as revenue over the coverage period.
IFRS (17) requires insurance liabilities to be measuraed
at & current fulfilment value and provides a more
uniform measurement and presentation approach for
all insurance contracts These requirements are
designed o achieve the goal of a consistent, principle-
based accounting for insurance contracts
Amendments o The amendments prohibit an entty from deducting | January 1, 2022
IAS ({16) Property, | from the cost of an item of property, plant and
Flant and Equipment | equipment any proceeds from selling ftems produced
while bringing that asset to the lecation and condiBion
necessary for it to be capable of operating in the
manner intended by management Instead, an entity
recognizes the proceeds from selling such items, and
the cost of producing those items, in profit or loss.
Reference to the Minor amendments were made to IFRS 3 to update | January 1, 2022
Comceptual the roferences to the Conceptual Framework for
Framework | Financial Reporting and add an exceplion for the
(Amendments to recogmiticn of liabilibes and conbingent liabilities
IFRS 3). within the scope of [AS 37 Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Contngent Assets. The amendments
alsp confirm that contingent assets should not be
recognised at the acquisition date.
Onerous Contracts — The amendments specify that the “cost of fulfilling” a | January 1, 2022,
Cost of Fulfilling a contract comprises the “costs that relate directly to the
Comntract contract”. Costs that relate directly to a conlract can
[Amendments to gither be incremental costs of fulfilling that contract
IAS 37, {examples would be direct labor, materials) or an
aliocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling
contracts (an example would be the allocation of the
depreciation charge for an item of property. plant and

L]




Agzas for Conerete Products

Public Shareholding Company

Amman -The Hashemite Kingdom of Jordan

Notes to the consolidated Anandal statements for the year ended December 31, 2071

[Amendments to
1AS )

The amendments replace the definition of a change in
accounting estimates with a definition of accounting
estimates. Under the new definition, accounbing
estimates are “monetary amounts in  financial
statements that are subject o measurement
uncertainty”. Entities develop accounting estimates if
accounting policies require items in [inancial

statements fo bé measured in a way that involvis |

measurement uncertainty, The amendments clarify
that a change in accounting estimate that results from
rew information or new developments s not the
correcton of an error.

Standard number or Deescription Effective date
interpretation

equipment used in fulfilling the contract).
[FR5 Standards Annual Improvements to [FRS 9, IFRS 16, IFRS 1 and | Jamuary 1, 2022
20182000, TAS 41,
Classification of The amendments to Presentation of Financial | Janaary 1, 2023
Liabilities as Current | Statements clarify that labilities are classified as | (deferred from
or Non-Current either current or non-current, depending on the rights | January 1,
Amendments to that exist at the end of the reporting period | 2022)
145 (1). Classification is unaffected by the expectations of the

enbity or events after the reporting date .

The amendments in Classification of Liabdlides as

Current or Non-current {Amendments to [AS 1) affect

only the presentation of liabilities in the stalement of

financial position — mnot the amount or bming of

recognition of any asset, liability income or expenses,

or the information that entities disclose about those

items,
Disclosure of The amendments require that an entity discloses its | January 1, 2023,
Accounting olicies material accounting policies, instead of its significant
(Amendments to IAS 1 | accounting policies. Further amendments explain how
and IFRS Practice an entity can identify a material accounting policy.
Staternent 2). Examples of when an accounting policy is likely to be

material are added, To support the amendment

Inbernational

Accounting Standards Board (IASH) has also

developed guidance and examples to explain and

demonstrate the applicaon of the “four-step

matertality process” described in IFRS Practice

Statement 2. Once the entity applies the amendments

to TAS 1, it is also permitted to apply the amendments

te IFRS Practice Statement (2). The amendments are to

be applied prospectively
Definition of On February 12, 2021, the International Accounting | January 1, 2023
Accounting Standards Board (IASB) published ‘Definition of
Estimates Accounting Estimates .




Assas for Concrete Products
Public Shareholding Company

Amman ~The Hashemite Kingdom of Jordan

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 221

LAS 12 Income Taxes |

decommissioning obligations and affected entites
would be require recognition of additional deferred
tax agsets and liabilities.

That means the initial recognition exemption does not
apply to transactions in which egual amounts of
deductible and taxable temporary differences arise on
initial recognition.

Standard number or Description Effective date
interpretation

Deferred Tax related The amendments require companies to recognise | Jamuary 1, 2023
to Assets and deferred tax on transactions that, on initial

Liabilities arising from | recognition, give rise to equal amounts of taxable and

a Single transaction deductible temporary differences. They will bypically

{Amendments to apply o transactions such as leases of lessees and
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Assas Eor Concrete Products
Publizc Shareholding Company
Amemnan -The Hashemite Kingdom of Jordan

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended Dacember 31, 2021

Z-4 Summary of significant accounting policies

- Basis of consolidation (deemed apprapriabe]

— The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the parent (Assas
for Concrete Products) and the following subsidiaries which are controlled by the Entity :

Name of subsidiary Ownerahip
o
Assas Specialized Transport. Co 100

- Control is presumed to exist when the parent owns, directly or indirectly through
subsidiaries, more than half of the voling power of an enbity unless, in exceptional
circumstances, it can be clearly demonstrated that such ownership does met constitate
control

- Intergroup balances, transactions, income and expenses shall be eliminated in full

— Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a subsidiary not attributable, directly or
indirectly, to the parent

- If a parent loses a control of a subsidiary, the parent derecognize the assets and liabilities of
the subsidiary and non-controlling interests and other equities, recognize any profit or loss
resulted from loss of control in the statement of comprehensive income, recognize any
investment retained after loss of control at its fair value

= Property, plant and equipment

- Property, plant and equipment are initially recognized at their cost being their purchase price
plus any other costs directly attrtbutable o bringing the assets to the location and condiHon
necessary for them to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management

— After initial recognition, the property, plant and equipment are carried, in the statement of
financial position, at their cost less any accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment. Land is not depreciated.

~The depreciation charge for each period is recognized as expense. Depreciation is calculated
on a straight line basis, which reflects the pattern in which the asset's future economic
benefits are expected to be consumed over the estimated useful life of the assets using the

following rates:
Category Depreciation rake
'uullllil
Buildings 2-10
Bguipment and tools 210
Vehicles and machinery 510
Furniture and decorations 5-15
Software and computers 15-25
Electrical devices and equipment 512

~ The estimated useful lives are reviewed at each year-end, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on & prospective basis,

= The carrying values of property, plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment when
events or changes in the circumstances indicate the carrying value may not be recoverable, If
any such indication of impairment exists, impairments losses are calculated in accordance
with impairment of assets policy,

11



Assas for Concrete Produets
Public Shareholding Company
Amman =The Hashemite Kingdom of Jordan

Notes to the consolidated financlal stabements For the year ended December 31, 2021

= On the subsequent derecognition of the property, plant and equipment, the resulting gain or
loss, being the difference between the net disposal proceed, if any, and the carrying amount,
is included in profit or loss,

- Amount paid to build up property and equipment are initially carried to projects under
construction account. When the project becomes ready for use, it will be transferred to
property and equipment caplion.

— The company's management has reviewed the useful lives of all items of property,
machinery, and equipment, except for the item buildings and hardware and computer
programs. This led to a reduction in the consumption rate, as mentioned above, This review
was approved by the company’s board of directors.

lmpairment of non-financial assets

- At each statement of financial position date, management reviews the carrying amounts of ils
non-financial assets (property, plant and equipmeant and investment property) to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have been impaired.

- If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to
determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any, being the amount by which the carrying
amount of the asset exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of
asset's fair value less costs to sell and the value |n use. The asset's fair value is the amount for
which that asset could be exchanged betwesn knowledgeable, willing parties in arm's langth
transaction. The value in use s the present value of the future cash flows expected to be
derived from the asset.

— For the purpose of impairment valuation, assets are grouped at the lower level that have cash
flow independently {cash generating unit), previous impairment for pon-financial assets
{excluding goodwill) is reviewed for the possibility of reversal at the date of the financial
statements,

— An impairment loss is recognized immediately as loss.

— Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is
increased to the revised estimate of its revoverable amount, but the increased carrying
amount due to reversal should not be more than what the depreciated historical cost would
have been if the imparrment had not been recognized in prior vears. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognized immediately as meome.

venbories

= Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realizable value.

- Inventory costs comprise all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in
bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.

= Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the
estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

— The cost of inventory s assigned by using the weighted-average cost formula,

inamcial ents

Financial instrument is any conkract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and financial
liability or equity instrument of another entity.

- Finangjal assets
- A financial asset is any assst that is:

{a) Cash;

{b) An equity instrument of another entity;

{e) A contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset from another entity, or to
exchange financial assets or financial liabilities with another entity under conditions that
are potentially favorable to the entity.

{d) A contract that will or may be settled in the entity’s own equity instruments.

12



Assas for Concrete Products
Public Shareholding Company

Amman -The Hashemite Kingdom of Jordan

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended Decombser 31, 2001

— Financial assets are initially measured at fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at
fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly atiributable to the
acquisiton of the financial assel, but for financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,
transaction costs are recognized in profit or loss.

— Financial assets are classified to three categories as follows:

- Amartized cost.
—Fair value through other comprehensive income.
—Fair value through profit or loss.

= A Hnancial asset is measured at amortized cost if both of the following conditions are met

{2} the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to
collact contractual cash flows.

(b) the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash fAows that
are solely peyments of principal and interest on the principal amount cutstanding,

— Financial assels are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if both of
the following conditions are met:

- The financial assets i held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial
assets in order to collect contractual cash flows

~ The contractual terms of the financial assets give rise on specified dates to cash fows Bhat
are solely payments of principal and interests on that principal amount outstanding,

= All other financial assets {excluding financial assets at amortized cost or at fair value though
other comprehengive income} are subsequently measured at fair value in profit or losses.

- On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the entity may
irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in the investments fair value in other
comprehensive income

Subsequent measurement of financial assets
Subsequently financial assets are measured as follows:

Financial asseks Subsequent measurement

Are subsequently measured at fair value

Financial asgets at fair value

through profit or loss net gaing or losses, including interests revenues or

dividends, are recopnized in profit or loss
Are subsequently measured at amortized cost using
effective interests method.

Financial asserts at amortized
cost

Amaortized cost is reduced by impairment Insses
Interests income, gain and loss of foreign exchange and
impairment loss are recognized in profit or loss. Gain
and loss from disposal are recognized in profit or loss.

E Thisse assets are subsequently measured at fair value,
All changes to these assets are recognized in other
comprehensive income and are never reclassified ko
profit or lass, except for dividends recognized in profit
and loss..

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value,
with the difference baing recopnized in other
comprehensive income.

Interest {in the effective interest method), ranslation
differences, impairment losses, gains and losses on the
sdle of those assets, reclassification gains, and losses are
recogmized in profit or loss.

On disposal, the cumulative gains and losses in OCT are
classified into profit or loss,

Equity instruments at their
value through other

comprehensive income

Dbt instruments at fair valuse
through other comprehensive
ineome

13



Assas for Conerete Products
Pablic E-har:holding Company
Amman -The Hashemite Kingdom of Jordan

Motes to the consolidated financial stalements for the year ended December 31, 2021

Derecagnition of financial assets
Derecognition of firancial assets {or a part of a group of similar financial assels) when

— The contractual rights to the cash flow from the financial assets expire, or

— It transfers the conbractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial assets or assume a
contractual sbligation to pay the cash flows entirely to a third party.

Einancial liabilities

- A financial Gability is any lability that is:

(8) A conbractual obligation to deliver cash or another financial asset to another entity, or to
exchange financial assets or financial liabilities with another entity under conditions that
aré potentially unfavorable to the entity; or

(b) A contract that will or may be settled in the entity’s own equity instruments.

— Financial Habilities are initially recognized at fair value less transaction costs; directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of those labilities, except for the financial labilities
classified as at fair value through profit or loss, which are initially measured at Fair value.

~ After initial recognition, the entity measures all financial liabilities at amortized cost using
the effective interest method, except for financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
which are measured at fair value and other determined financial liabilities which are not
measured under amortized cost method, Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or

loss are stated at fair value, with any resulting gain or loss from change in fair value is
recognized through profit or loss,

Trade 5 and sceroa

Trade payables and accruals are liabilities to pay for goods or services that have been received
or supplied and have been either invoiced or formally agreed with the suppliers or not.

- Oifsetting financial instruments
A financial asset and a financial liability are offset and the net amount presented in the
statement of financial position when, and only when, an entity currently has a legally

enforceable right 1o set off amounts and intends either to settle in a net basis, or through realize
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

- cash i

Cash comprises cash on hand, current accounts and short torm deposits at banks with a
maturity date of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value,

- Trade receivables

= Irade receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments
that are not quoted in an active market.

— Trade receivables are stated at invoices amount net of allowance for expected credit losses
which represents the collective impairment of receivables

- Investments in associates

— An associate is an entity over which the investor has significant influence and that & neither a
subsidiary nor an interest in a joint venture, Significant influence is the power to participate
in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but is not control or jeint
control over those policies, if the entity holds 20 to 50 percent of the voting power of the
investes, it is presumed that the entity has signified influence.

= The entity’s investment in its associate is accounted for under the equily method of
accounting. Under the equity method, the investment in an associate is initially recognized at
cost and the carrying amount is increased or decreased fo recognize the investor's share of
the profit or loss of the investee after the date of acquisition. The investor’ share of the profit

14



Assas for Concrete Products
Public Shareholding Company
Amman <The Hashemite Kingdom of Jordan

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2021

or loss of the investes is recognized in the investor's profit or loss. Distributions received
from an investee reduce the carrying amount of the investment. The investor's share of those
changes is recognized in other comprehensive income of the investor.

— After applying the equity method, the entity determine, if necessary, o recogmize
impairment losses on its investments in associates, and determine at the date of the financial
statement that the investment in associate is impaired, and if so, the entity calculate the
impairment amount as the difference between the recoverable amount and the carrying
amount which is recognized as a loss in the statement of comprehensive income.

- Financial statement of the associate are prepare for the same date as the financial statements
of the enkity. And when necessary o the accounting policies of the associate are amended to
comply with the accounting pelicies of the entity.

- When neo consolidation s prepared, investment in an associate is accounted for at cost or
equity method or [FES {9).

- Intra-entity profit and loss transactions are eliminated to the extent of the investor's interest
in the relevant associate,

- Impairment of financial assets

= At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortized
cost and debt securities at FVTOCT are credit - impaired. A financial assets s “credit
impaired” when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future
cash flows of the financial assets have ocourred,

— The entity recognizers loss allowance for expected credit loss {ECL) o
- Financial assets measured at amortized cost
= Debt investments measured at FVOCL
- Contract assets.

— The entity measures loss allowances st an amount equal to lifetime ECLs.

— Loss allowances for trade receivables and contract assets are always measured at an amount
equal to lifetime ECLs.

— When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly
since initial recognition and when estimating ECLs, the Entity considers reasonable and
supportable information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort based in
the entitys historical experience and forward looking information.

- The entity considers a financial asset to be in default when:

- The client is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the entity in full, without recourse by
the entity o actions such as realizing security (if any), or
— The financial asset is more than 360 days past due.

— Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortized cost are deducted from the gross
carrying amount of the assets.

- A financial assets is written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the
contractual cash flows. The entity write of the gross carrying amount of the financial asset is

in case of, hquidabon, bankruptcy or issuance of a court ruling to reject the claim for financial
asset

- Provisions

- Provisions are present obligations (legal or constructive) resulted from past events, the
settlement of the obligations is probable and the amount of those obligations can be
estimated reliably. The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the
expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the statement of financial position
date,

— Previsions reviewed and adjusted at each statement of financial position date. If outflows, to
settle the provisions, are no longer probable, reverse of the provision is recorded as income.

— If the entity expected to be reimbursed for a part or full provision, the reimbursement shall
be recognized within assets, when it is virtually certain and its value can be measured
reliably,
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Assas for Concrete Products
FPublic Shareholding Company
Ammamn -The Hashemite Kingdom of Jardan

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 121

= In the statement of comprehensive income, the expense relating to a provision may be
presented net of the amount recognized for reimbursement.

— Where the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted by using a
currently pre-lax discount rate that reflect the risks specific to the lability, when using
discount any increase in provision is recognized as & financial cost over time.

— Related parties
- Transactions with related parties represent transfer of resources, services, or obligations
between related parties.
= Terms and conditions relating to related party transactions are approved by management

- Basic earnings per share from profit /loss

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing profit or loss, attributable to ordinary
shareholders, by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstand ing during the year.

Eevenue recognition

— The entity recognize revenue from sale of good and rendering of service when control is
transferred to the customer.

— Revenues are recognized based on consideration specified in contract with customer that
expected to be received excluding amounts collected on behalf of third parties.

— Revenue is reduced for amount of any trade discounts and velume rebates allowed by the

entity.
Sale ix concrete materials

The company sells ready-mix concrete makerials to customers through its own sales outlets, and
revenue Is recognized at the transfer of control, which represents the delivery of ready-mix

cencrete to customers at their designated locations, the acquisition of approved receipt voucher
and the issuance of invoice,

Right of return
The customer has a right of return within (14) days. At the same time, the entity has a right to
recover the product when the customer exercise his right of return. The entity uses its

accumulated historical experience to estimate the number of returns. It is considerad highly
probable that a significant reversal in the cumulative revenue recognized will not occur,

- Definition of a lease

- A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers substantally all the risks and rewards
incldental to ownership of an underlying asset to the lessee. As for other types of leasing
conirack, they are classified as operating leasing contacts. The contracts are classified upon
the start of the lease contract.

= Lease income [rom operating lease s recognized in income on a straight-line bagis over the
term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred by the entity in negotiating and
armanging an operating lease are added to the carrying value of the leased asset and
recognized as an expense over the lease torm on the same basis as the lease income. Assets

leased under operating leases are depreciated based on the same depreciation policy adopted
by the entity for similar assets.

- Bomowing costs

- Borrowing costs are interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the
borrowing of funds.

~ Borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.
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Assas For Conerete Products
Public Shareholding Company
Amman -The Hashemite Kingdom of Jordan

Motes to the consolidated financlal stabements Far the year ended December 31, 2021
— Income tax
Income tax is caleulated in aceordance with Jordanian laws and regulations.

- i ncies

— In preparing the financial statements, transactions in currencies other than the functinnal

currency (foreign currencies) are recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of
the transactions.

— At each statement of financial position dale, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at the statement date (closing rate). Non-
monetary {tems that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rate at the date of the bransaction. Non-monetary items that are

measured at fair value in foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date
when the fair value was determined.

— Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on ranslating monetary
items at rates different from those at which they were ranslated on initial recognition during

the period or in previous financial statements shall be recognized in profit or loss in the
period in which they arise.

- Contingent liabilities
— Contingent liabilities are possible obligations depending on whether some uncertain future

evenis oocur, or they are present obligations buk payvments are not probable or the amounts
cannot be measured reliably,

- Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the financial statements.
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Aszsas for Concrete Products

Public Shartholding Company
Amman - The Hashemite Kingdom of Jordan

Motes to the consolidated financial statement for the year ended Decomber 31, 7071

(™) Projects under construction consist of the following:

20z1 2020

D o
Accounting program 101,258 101,258
Payments on purchase of property,
plant and equipment 3,977 40,951
Total 105,235 lﬂlﬂi

(") Depreciation expense was allocated to statement of comprehensive income as follows:

021 2020
1D o
Manufacturinfg expenses 458,626 537,114
Cost of transportation revenue 72435 71,918
Admindstrative expenses 6,797 8,764
Selling and distribution expense 1,119 1,302
Total 538,977 619,098
4. Investments in associates
Hoesage ol
Corary rane Cebydivsptin  lodeiy  Nooboolhass ool » )
L 0 0
Kl o Concele indstres o [ PLL Tl il LLE it
ineruional Carls G2 Jiin P o0 1 AW i
Teld AL 15T
(*) Mevement of investment through the year was as follows:
2021 20M
18 s
Balance - beginning of year 1377194 1,650,360
Share of result of associates 1,785 (73,308
Change in fair value of in fmancial assets at fair
value through other comprehensive income -
agsociates DAL 142
Balance - end of year 1,621,404 1,577,194
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Assas bor Concrete Products
Public Sharehalding Company

Amman - The Hashemite Kingdom of Jordan
Motes to the consolidated financial statement for the year ended December 31, 2021

(") Associate companies’ summary of information as follaws:

Procestigs of
Compiy une ey Tohilass T ihibtes Revenss it s
% o D D B
Kipud o Concrte It Co 9 12 B AR 1150 Ll
il Casds [ | BT 15 TL o342 et

{*/**} Within the investment there are 10,000 shares in Alquds Ready mix concrete industries as
of December 31, 2021 reserved against a membership in the board of directors of the
COMpany,

{7/ ") The company’s share of profit of associates menboned above was valued based on interim

reviewed financial statements issved sn September 30, 2020, because the fimal financial
statements have not been issued until the date of our report

5. Investments in financial asscts at fair value through other comprehensive income

2021 2020

JD 1
Cost {1 343 816 M1.B16
Acoumulated change in fair value (271, &60) {288,546)
Net 71,956 55,21

(*} Included in the investments there are 10,000 shares in the [nternational brokerage & financial
Markets Co. s of December 31, 2021 reserved against a membership in the company’s board of

directors.
6. Inventory

b | 2020

o JD
Finished goods 4591 A15 350,651
Spare parts 263,203 254,107
Raw Material 76,23 107,257
Goods in transit 10,126 130,504
Fuel 4,657 1,583
Deduct : slow moving inventory provision (*) {30,000} (107 &74)
Tatzl 815,627 736,928

. ———————"""]



Assas for Concrete Products
FPublic Shareholding Company
Amman = The Hashemite Kingdom of Jordan

Nates to the consolidated financial statement for the year ended December 31, 2011

(*) Following & movement slow moving inventory provision during the year:

21 2020

ID o
Balance - beginning of year 107,754 107,754
Pravided 351 2
Recoveny of provision (78.135)
Bialance - end of year 530,000 107,784

7. Related parties

— BRelated parties consist of associates, subsidiaries and companies in which main shareholders have
significant shares in them.

— Due from related partiy item consist of Al-quds for concrete products:

— Due to related parties items comprise the following:

21 220

o i
Dhse to related parties (%) 1,466,090 1,946,528
Deffered checks (*) T12.440 1,057,959
Total 2,178,530 3,004,487

{*} Due to related parties items comprise the following:

a1 20

o o
Ready Mix Concrate & Construction Supplies Co. 0B4,547 1354387
(atrana Cement Company 187,195 115,668
Masafat for Specialized Transport Co. 182,32 337,848
Conctere Technolagy Co. (CTC) 111,922 127,130
Alquds Crushers and Quarrise Co, - 11,495

Tatal . Miﬁ.iﬂg“ 1,946,524
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Assas for Conerete Products
Fublic Shareholding Company
Amman = The Hashemite Kingdom of Jordan

Motes to the consalidated financial statement for the year ended December 31, 2021

(**} Deferred checks -related partios items comprise the following:

01 203

D o
(ntrana Cement Company 550,785 768,959
Masafzt Bent & Car Co. 130,151 119,000
Ready Mix Concrele & Construction Supplies Co. W0R 170,000
Alquis Crushers and Quarrise Co. 7495 .
Total 11440 1,057,959

——

= Iransactions wilth related parties are operational in its nature, major transactions with related
parties stated in the comprehensive tncome statement were as follows:

2071 0
b D
Sales 143450 74,011
Purchases {cost of sale) 1,241,373 L481.617
Manufacturing expenss 73342 65,251
Oithar ravanue 24,000 15,000
Selling and distribution expenses 10,245 8,520
8. Other debit balances
unn 2020
o o
Prepaid expenses 41,645 18,575
Endorsed checks against bank facilities 37447
Refundable deposits 33725 33,715
Prepaid to suppliers 20,905 132,557
Prepayments on income bax 19,512 17,760
Employees receivables 14,561 20,000
Others 53,5491 LB
Bank mirgins 3,128 14,689
Total 174,514 159,168




Assas for Concrete Products
Public Shareholding Company
Amuvan — The Hashemite Kingdom of Jordan

Notes to the consolidated financial statement for the year ended December 31, 2001

9. Trade receivahle

Trade receivables (*)

Checks on hand

Less: allowance for expected credit losses (*)
Net

{*) Accerding to the company's credit policies, grace period s 60 days in the ordinary course of

2021 2020
Jo Jo
954,190 1,265,320
103,381 160,327
(498,131) (746,148)
559,440 679,499

_—_— —a

business, the receivables ages details are as follows based on issued sales invoices:

1-60 days

61-120 days
121-180 days
181-360 days

More than 361 days
Total

- Trade recervables are concentrated in one receivable that represent 9% from the receivables as at

December 31, 2021,

2071 2020

o 1L
417316 367,122
46,293 213491
57,919 B, B9
48,566 139407
384,206 480,604
954,190 1,265,320

(™) Allowance for expected credit losses movement during the year:

Balance - beginning of year
[meurred losses

Becovery of allowance
Balance - end of year

10. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash on hand
Currenl accotints &t banks
Tatal

021 2030
o o
746,148 767,702
(70.41) (21,554)
(L77,676)
496,131 745,145
2021 2020
o JD
9,413 5,988
7.137 16,543
46,550 12,531



Aszas for Concrate Products
Public Shareholding Company
Amman - The Hashemite Kingdom of Jordan

Notes to the consolidated financial statement for the year ended December 30, 20

11. Statutory reserve

Statu £ in any (Public Iding C

- Statutory reserve is allocated according to the Jordanian Companies Law by deducting 10% of the
annual net profit until the reserve equals one quarter of the Company’s subscribed capital
However, the Company may, with the approval of the General Assemnbly, continue to deduct this
annual ratio until this reserve equals the subscribed capital of the Company in full. Such reserve is
not available for dividends distribution,

— For the general assembly after exhausting other reserves to decide in an extraordinary meeting to
quench its losses from the accumulated amounts in statuary reserve, and to rebuild it in aceordance
with the provisions of the law.

subsidia n i jability Compan

= Statutory reserve is allocated according to the Jordanian Companies Law by deducting 10% of the
annual net profit until the reserve equals of the Company’s subscribed capital Such reserve i not
available for dividends distribution.

— For the general assembly after exhausting other reserves to decide in an extracrdinary meeting o

gquench its losses from the accumulabed amounts in statuary reserve, and to rebuild it in accordance
with the provisions of the law,

12, Voluntary reserve

11

14

This reserve is determined in accordance with the [ordanian Companies Law by allocating not more
than 20% annually of the profit to this reserve.

Accumulated loses

Anextraordinary general assembly meeting was held on June 14, 2020, It was approved to amortze of
accumulated losses in the statement of financial position amounting ko [ 4,880,000 (four million and
eighty-eight thousand Jordanian dinars only) by reducing the company’s authorized and paid-up
capital amounting to JO 12,000,000 (twelve million Jordanian dinars only), for the capital to become [0
7,120,000 (seven million one hundred twenty thousand Jordanian dinars only. the legal procedures
were completed on December 1, 2020.

Loans

Eaic Lz perié Gunrhe eednte  (omel  Koscewe Tl T
% o p P [

Erwacekar bo puncuse fed ssesond ppacy;  Compuny's graseee nd
S LT M ——
Bark o prdiv Copvnercallosn Bl e bt rvbliowst s up on Docersbee 3, X20,  mar and ocated i i i s 152 S L6 R Pk | I 11

Thelaun hall e uid sk durthe  Cepestng comewrvd deckin
brsarboort on 5 oy M0 eloinge. vl ek o e
heai haakirg Compatan reshe] fing procsd e e 5 - . . Bm

Tetd W oW ma R

{*) [t was agreed with the Bank that the repayment date of four instalments of the loan would be
postponed from March, April, May and June 2020 to April, May, June and July 2022, where interest
would be paid monthly from the schedule date until full repayment.



Assas for Concrete Products
Fublic Shareholding Company

Amman = The Hashemite Kingdom of Jordan

Motes to the consolidated financial statement for the year ended Decembaer 31, 2021

15. Oither credit balances

200 2020
D o
Advanced payments from customers 135,939 81,126
Accrued expenses 74,213 %0383
Sales tax deposit 52433 M7
Sharehwlders deposits 25863 5,853
Rewards provision 20,000 17,885
End of service provision 18,663 11,212
Employees income tax deposits 18582 17,077
Sodal security deposits 14399 25,582
Employess payable 7928 6,675
Savings fund deposits 5541 101,249
Mational contribution provision ) | Rt -
Deposits for others 273 2,053
Total 375,581 435 837
16. Income tax provision
2021 2020
D D
Balance - baginning of year 40,087 -
Provided during the year 29,210 40,087
Faid during the yaer (40.087) -
Balanee - end of year 29,210 40,087

Parent Company

= Tax returns have been submitted for all years up o the year 2020
— The tax audit of the Amman branch audited by a tax auditor, and the tax status was settbed until
the year 2016, The tax status has not beon audited and settled for the years from 2077 to 2020 to
date.
= The tax audit of the Aqaba branch sudited by a tax auditor, and the tax status was settled until the
year 2018, and the tax status for the years from 2019 to 2020 has not been audited and settled to
date.
Subsidiary C
Tax returns have been submitted up to the year 2020, and the tax situation has not been audited by the
tax auditor bll date,

20



Assas for Concrete Products
Public Shareholding Company
Amman - The Hashemite Kingdom of Jordan

Motes to the consolidated financial statement for the year ended December 31, 2021

17. Trade payables

2021 2020
JD D
Trade payables {*) §35,656 512,278
Postponed checks 511,855 113,194
Uneleared checks 16,000 145,753
Tatal 1,163,511 B71,230
—

(") Trade payables are concentrated in six payables that represent 26% of total payables as at December
31, 2021

18. Cost of sale

am ol

Amman Azaby Totil Tokd

D Ly o o
Kaw maerials beginning of year it 1157 17257 153,50
Faw materials purchaces during the yaar LS8 1n S183T AN A3 11340
Raw materiah encling of yuar BN (L7 (.22 {107.157)
Raw materisl used bn production 2014 44 514,380 525466 1,086 3%
Manufachirng cost [ | 442430 19,552 1740851 1,6 3
Firished gnods beginning of yeer T 112304 50,451 F19,5%
Less: finished poods end of year (357427} {133,326 PT1415] {352,651
Balanoe 130T M5 = LB 129,083 e 35971

6



Assas for Conerele Products
Public Ehi:u-l‘mld!ng Company

Amman - The Hashemite Kingdom of Jordan
Notes fo the consolidated financial statement for the year ended December 31, 2021

(*) Manufacturing cost are as following:

(Cesning expenses
Coemunications

Teeve] and marsportatize
Trangportatinns

Sargles kesls

Mon refundable sale b
Miscefanesis
Traaspatations fres
Professional fess

Tetal

2l e
Amman Agaba Tatd Tetal
m o o o
L Bl 25 L SHLAN
e B 438, 26 ST
1481 992 15904 137,11
31575 B4 ol 9,505
35,585 057 R 50
4R LU #A00 1
N Diati H448 4534
pilbin 17 1.5 LMY
I3k 926 P 1)
nan 1 EELH) 189
85 37 M5 1974
17,043 555 o W5
TAB B2 15468 1557
11,153 - 1.2 10305
146 55l a7 5
LT i R8T e
i T 12040
b8 %5 (7] L1
L3 1380 51 10
160 3 ¥l AT
1.6 136 275 519
149 LI 260 207
L1418 204 m
L& B 1518 17
%0 i} 1134 1443
X8R
144249 20,58 101 LEEre
e — T —
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Assas for Concrete Products
Piblic Shareholding Company
Amman - The Hashemite Kingdom of Jordan

Notes to the consolidated financial statement for the year ended December 31, 2021

13. Cost of transportation revenue

2020
o
Fusl 5,945 209,411
Salaries, wages and related benefits 245,460 223,290
Maintenancs 142,682 124,473
Transportation wages 123,655 BIX
Depreciation 72435 71,918
Vehicle expenses 28,551 37,704
Company’s contribution to social security 124148 16,220
Licences, permits and governmental subscriptions 10,577 L145
Health insurance 9,796 9.265
Miscellaneous 2,933 1110
Company’s contribution in savings fund 1.7B& 2108
Corsumables Bia5 12,042
Insurance B35 S0
Travel expenses Tz B0
Hospitality 3% 32
Tranportation 24 13
Stationery and printing 2
Rents 24,000
Total 998,780 769,610
e e
0. Other revenues
ul il
Amman Aqab Tolal Tokal
D D D o
Recowery of provision 173,146 17T
Liands rant ravenus 15000 15000 M0
(Dthers 7620 T um
Gaizs on sal of property, plest ard equipment 10349
Totl 155,766 m4mn 51,560

18




Assas for Concrete Products
Public Shareholding Company
Amman - The Hashemite Kingdom of Jardan

Motes to the consolidated financial statement for the year ended December 31, 2021

21 Selling and distribution expenses

.| N4
Amiman Aqaba Tokl Tetal
L o Jo Y
Salaries, wapes and related benefits 5701 : ST K543
Drisooeent wlwed 16717 132 s sne
Companys contribusion In social security 1 . BI 786
Haaléh surance 3,556 1412 L7
Licences, permits and govemment subscriptions 318 L L
Trarsporiation fees 060 LD 1110
Fud L0 LTy pA 7
Veltide sipraes I05% LTE W 5B
Doliscal|mseonas 17 135 e n
Beris 2408 L) 3™
Ilemizrusce 16 173 L
Depreciation L1 . 1,19 130
Companys rootribution in savisgs fund 1,048 . 1HE 1,363
Insurance W 1% ilh i
Stabenery and prinking 175 - 178 MO
Water and electricity : 5 : N
Tobl T3 11343 10082 11292
S —— e




Asgas for Concrete Products
Public Shareholding Company
Amman - The Hashemite Kingdom of Jordan

Motes to the consolidated financial statement for the year ended Diecember 31, 2021

11 Administrative expenses

i M

Amman Agabe Total Tohl

o jo ID L]
Salaries, wages and related benefils 195406 HIs Pk Him
Broard of divectors ransportatioes LRy - nw 16,200
Licences, peemils and povermmestal subscriptions s % 118 I51H
Veehides experees Mk U8 B
Companys comtribtion b social seoarity 1357 TH Pk [LRirs
Professicnal fees 16,9% 1589 18007

Rewirds W15 K15

Heallh irsurance & 134 1in 8,683
Depreciation &7 - 6797 57
Diorations 19 ik 716 ]
Camgarys coniribution to sevings fund 3416 1108 455 417
Mainizance 658 - LT 3m
Commurdration isn - 350 LA
Adwertigements i a2 18
Waterand electricity 2 m 1060
Miscellarenes 15% 13% 4k
Hatimery and peintings 140 1420 1710
[rsumnce Ei 24 " m
Bank drarges 55 i3 L
Howpitality ur 7 |
Travel and raswportations 7 B 7 g
Engiaeering corsutaions . Lo
Trainimng . - » bl
Total 356,704 B645 £4315% W4n

——mmm——— e e

23. Subsidiaries fimnancial statements

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statement of the subsidiary as of Decembes
31, 2021 as follows:

Canpany wime Lepal stihs Faié cagited {waeshi Telal assets Taullishilties  Refained eimings

o % L ] o
AspisSpecilined Transport, Co LLC 50 i L o 5780

10




Azsas for Conerete Products
Public Shareholding Company
Amman - The Hashemite Kingdom of Jordan

Notes to the consolidated financial statement for the year ended December 31, 2001

. Legal cases

Parent Company
According to the lawyer's letter there are legal cases raised by the company against others amounting
to [ 1,139,360 and these cases are still hald at specialized courts,

Subsidiary Company

There is a legal case raised by others against the company with an amount of I} 11000 and it i still
hald at specialized courts.

25. Contingent liabilities

There are contingent liabilities amounting to JIV 94,393 with & cash deposit of D 14,689 at the date of
the statement of finansial position,

26, Risk management
a) Capital risk:

Regularly, the capital structure is reviewed and the cost of capital and the risks associated with
capital are considered, [n addition, capital ¢ managed properly to ensure continuing as a going
concern while maximizing the return through the aptimization of the debt and equity balance,

b} Currency risk:

= Lurrency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash fows of a financial Instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates.,

— The risk arises on certain transactions denominated in foreign currencies, which imposes sort of
risk due to fluctuations in exchange rates during the year,

— The entity is not exposed to currency risk.

) In rate

— Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or fubisre cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.

— The risk arises on exposure to & fluctuation in market interest rates resulting from borrowings
and depositing in banks.

= Therisk is managed by maintaining an appropriate mix between fixed and Floating interest rates
balances during the financial year.

- Ilhe following table shows the sensitivity of profit or loss and equity to changes in interest rates
received by the entity on its deposits with banks and on interest rates paid By the enkity on

borrowing from the banks:
Effect on
Comprehessive
At Decamber 31, 2021 Change in interest income
Y o
Leans 05 LAES
d) Qther price risk:

= Other price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fAuctuate because of changes in market prices (other than thoss ariging from interest rate risk or
currency risk), whether those changes are cansed by factors specific to the individual Rnancial
mstrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all similar financial instruments traded in the market
— The risk arises from investing in equity investments.

3




Azsas for Concrete Producks
Fublic Shareholding Company
Amman - The Hashemite Kingdom of Jordan

Neotes bo the consolidated financial statement for the year ended December 31, 2021

The following table shows the sensitivity to profit or loss and equity to the changes in the listed
prices of investments in aquity instruments, assuming no changes to the rest of other variables:

The effect on
At Drecamber 31, 2021 Change in price owners equity
% D
Investment in financial assets at fair value through
Other comprehesive income 15 3,598

e} Credit risk:

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss for the
other party by falling to discharge an obligation.

Regularly, the credit ratings of debtors and the valume of fransactions with those debtors during
the year are monitored.

Ungoing credit evaluation is performed on the financial condition of debtors.

The carrying amount of financial assets recorded in the financial statements represents the
maximum exposure to credit risk withoul taking inte account the value of any collateral
obtained,

f) Liguidity risl

-

Liquidity risk is the risk of encountering difficulty in meeting obligations associated with
hmancial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial assets,

Liquidity risk is managed through monitoring cash fows and matching with maturity dates of
the financial assets and liabilities.

= The fellowing table shows the maturity dates of financial assets and liabilities as of December 31:

Les tham 1 pear Mlare thas 1year

Dlescription il ol i il
Fintaricial assets: o o jo o
Irvestments esocistes - - LaZi4H Lsms
Finarcial assets at fair value theeugh other
compretermbee ircre . : 7195 (o |
Due form related pasties < i1
Dther debit balances Ll Lk b
Trade sceivakles T Ll
Cash and cash eqeivalents #,54 B - -
Trdal i 5,442 ﬂ L3 Lol
Financial 1iabilties
Laans 160,50 EHTRE L3 ¥
e ceedit balances 50 NiLe
Dase o rebated parties 21785 100457 . .
Trade payahies L 163511 ;0
Yantks peerdrat - LITATE :
Total 3.516,321 4575482 13,380 %756

B —

iz




Assas for Concrete Products
Public Shareholding Company
Amman - The Hashemite Kingdom of Jordan

Notes to the consolidated financial stabement for the year ended December 31, 2021

27. Fair value of financial instruments

The entity shall classifiss measuring fair value methods using fair valus hierarchy that reflects the
significance of inputs used in making the measurements. The hierarchy of fair value of financial
mstruments have the following Jevels

= Level (1} quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities,

— Level {2): inputs other than quoted prives included within level (1) that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly (as prices) or indirectly (derived from prices).

= Level (3): inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable markel data.

As at 31 December 2021 Level (1)

B
[nvestment in financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income 71,956
Total 71,956

28. The effects of covid-19

As @ resull of the outbreak of the new Corona Virus (COVID-19) in early 2021, its spread in several
geographical areas around the world, including the Hashemite Kingdom of [ordan, and its impact on
the world economy, the Jordanian Cabinet's decision of 17 March 2021 imposed a curfew law and
suspended all business and economic activities in whole or in part until further notice, part of the
Government's precautionary measures to combat the spread of the Corona Virus. Consequently, the
maority of business achivities in the Hashemite Kingdom of Jordan were affected by this decision
COVID-19 created uncertainty in the global economic environment.

In preparing the financial statements, management conducted an assessment of a company's viability
as a continuous enterprise and of other risk management practices to manage potential disruptions o
the business’s operations and financial performance that may have been caused by an outbreak
(COVID-19) by assessing the implications of the business's operations, As a result of the potential
effects of the Corona virus, the management of the entity has taken forward information for at least
the 12 menths following the reporting period, both with regard to the negative effects of the virus on
the functioning of the business process and the ability to repay its debts in the event that things return
te normal within a reasonable period of time,

The entity examined the potential effects of current economic Auctuations in determining the amounts
declared for the financial and non-financial assets of the entity, which represent the best management
esfimates based en observable information. Markets remain volatile and recorded amounts continue
to be sensitive to market fluctuations.

The facility has trade receivables resulting from the entity's activity and investments in associates
whose value was tested for impairment during the period due to market fluctuations from economic
conditions due to covid-19. In the financial period.

In addition to the above, the loans mentioned in note {14) were rescheduled as a result of the
emerging corona virus (Covid-19) at the beginning of 2020, as the payment of loan installments were
postponed from March, April, May and June 2020 to April, May, June and July 2022.




